

# SedonaService Group Tickets Reference Document

2013 SedonaOffice Users Conference

Presented by Laurie Goodrich & Lisa Gambatese

#### About this Document

This Reference Document is for use by SedonaOffice customers only. This document is not intended to serve as an operating or setup manual. Its purpose is to overview the content contained within, and to be used for reference purposes only.

SedonaOffice reserves the right to modify the SedonaOffice product described in this document at any time and without notice. Information contained in this document is subject to change without notice. Companies, names and data used in examples herein are fictitious unless otherwise noted. In no event shall SedonaOffice be held liable for any incidental, indirect, special, or consequential damages arising from or related to this guide or the information contained herein. The information contained in this document is the property of SedonaOffice.

This document may be updated periodically, be sure to check our website at <u>www.sedonaoffice.com</u> for the most current version. Copyright 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012,2013.

#### **Document Contents**

This document is being provided to explain the new SedonaService Group Tickets feature available for limited release with the SedonaOffice application as of Version 5.6.165.



### **Table of Contents**

ABOUT THIS DOCUMENT
SEDONASERVICE GROUP TICKETS OVERVIEW4
GROUP TICKETS CONCEPTS
Inspection Linked to Recurring Item5
GROUP TICKETS SETUP
Service Level Setup
Inspection Setup7
Creating a New Inspection7
Inspection Groups9
High Frequency Inspections9
Inspection Item and Amount 10
CREATING GROUP INSPECTION TICKET 10
Adding a Ticket to an Existing Group Ticket 12
Removing a Ticket from a Group Ticket12
Creating an Appointment in a Group Ticket 13
Adding Parts to Group Tickets16
Resolving a Group Ticket 17
Invoicing a Group Ticket Not Linked to RMR18
Invoicing a Group Ticket Linked to RMR 20
GROUPING SERVICE TICKETS



#### SedonaService Group Tickets Overview

This document is designed to describe new functionality contained with SedonaService that is available in SedonaOffice version 5.6.125 and higher. Modifications were made in versions 5.6.159 and greater. This new functionality is not being released to the general population and may only be activated by certain designated SedonaOffice staff members.

Group Tickets were designed primarily to be used with Inspection Tickets, however they may be used with regular Service Tickets as well. The concept for this new feature is to provide the ability to group several tickets together, schedule technician appointments for the group of tickets and also be able to bill the customer for work performed on multiple tickets within the group on a single customer invoice.

Additional functionality allows the User to link an Inspection Setup to a recurring line. Once the Inspection ticket has been completed, it will mark the recurring line to be available for cycle invoicing. Modifications have been made to cycle invoicing to now allow users to perform cycle invoicing for recurring lines linked to inspection records separately from the non-inspection linked recurring.

The Service Level setup has been modified to indicate whether an Inspection Record must be linked to a recurring line when selecting the particular service level on the inspection setup form.

#### **Group Tickets Concepts**

Group Tickets processing was designed primarily for use with Inspections, however this functionality may be used with regular Service Tickets as well. Inspection Ticket Groups are pre-defined within the Inspection Setup records. Once the Inspection Tickets are generated into their pre-defined groups, a User has the option of either removing one or more tickets from the group or adding one or more tickets to an existing group. Both Regular Service Tickets and Inspection Tickets may be manually added to an existing Ticket Group as long as the Tickets are within the same customer site. Regular Service Tickets must be manually grouped if this is desired for the purpose of scheduling, dispatching and invoicing the tickets together as a group.

#### **Inspection Linked to Recurring Item**

There are two basic options available when determining how to use Group Inspection Tickets:

- Link an Inspection Record to a Recurring Line
- Setup Inspection without a Link to a Recurring Line

Using the option of linking an Inspection Setup to a Recurring Line will allow you to cycle bill the inspection services separately from other recurring services if desired. Inspections may only be linked to a recurring line if the Service Level selected on the Inspection setup form has been flagged to require a link to a recurring line.





#### **Group Tickets Setup**

If you will be linking your Inspection records to a recurring Item, you will have to setup at least one Service Level that requires linking.

#### Service Level Setup

The Service Level setup is maintained within SedonaSetup. A new tab labeled *Inspection* was added to the Service Level setup form. If the checkbox [RMR Link to Customer Recurring is Required] is selected on this form, then any Inspection created selecting this Service Level will require the User to link a recurring item to the Inspection.

OService Level Edit	/e
Service Level INSP Cont-LC Description Inspection Contract - Large Com	
General Parts Inspecton	
This option is used in Service Inspections to force a link between the inspection and customer RMR.	
<u>A</u> pply <u>N</u> ew <u>D</u> elete	

#### **Inspection Setup**

New Inspections are setup from the Customer Explorer within a System record. New fields have been added to the Inspection Setup form to accommodate the use of Group Tickets and the ability to link an Inspection to a Recurring Item. If you will be linking the Inspection to a Recurring Item, you must first setup the Recurring Line(s).

#### Creating a New Inspection

From a Customer Explorer record, expand the Customer Tree to the System where the Inspection will be created. Highlight the customer tree option Inspections, right-click and select the option New Inspection.

Plymouth Plantation Customer Information Payment Options Plymouth Plantation Contacts Contacts Plymouth Plantation-Bldg A-Main Hc Contacts Plymouth Plantation-Bldg A-Main Hc Contacts Plymouth Plantation-Bldg A-Main Hc Contacts Contact	9232 Plymouth Plantation		
Contacts  Sites  Sites  Generation-Bidg A-Main He  Generation-Bidg A-Main He  Generation-Bidg A-Main He  Generation  Recurring  Recurring  Recurring History  Recurring History  Recurring Master Items  Service  Contacts  Contacts  Contacts  Contacts  Invoices  Jobs	Plymouth Plantation Customer Information Performation Performation Performation Performation Plymouth Plantation	Plymouth Plantation 44450 Joy Road Plymouth, MI 48170 United States	T T
Systems     FA3223-0 Fire System     Documents     Equipment History     Inspection     Recurring History     Recurring Master Items     Service     Contacts     Credit Memos     Documents     Inspections     Inspections     Inspections     Jobs		(734) 414-7799 Description	Frequency
Inspections New Inspection Recurring Recurring History Recurring Master Items Service Contacts Credit Memos Documents Inspections Inspections Jobs	FA3223-0 Fire System     FA3223-0 Fire System     Documents     Equipment     Fourigment History		
Service    Service     Service         Service	Recurring History Recurring Master Items	w Inspection	
- Invoices	Service Contacts Credit Memos Documents Inspections		
Recurring     Recurring History	- Invoices → Jobs B- Notes - Securring - Recurring History		1
Service     Group Tickets     Group Tickets     Group Antation-Bldg B-Carriag     Group Antation-Bldg C-Barn     Service     Group Antation-Bldg D-Retail S	Service Group Tickets B-Carriag D-Carriag		7

Additional fields have been added to the Inspection screen to accommodate new functionality and Service Level dropdown display has been modified to include RMR Link.



## SedonaService Group Tickets

System In	spections							×
Site	Plymo	outh Plantation-Carriage (Fire _Burg)						
Syster	m 6562	452						
( <b>.</b>	Fire							
Detail   Eq	quipment							1
🔍 Inspe	ction			_				
	Description	Q-Sprinkler	[	Service <u>T</u> ech			•	
	Frequency	Quarterly	[	<u>G</u> roup Number	1			
	Service Problem Code	Insp-Sprinkler	[	Estimated Hours	2			
	Service <u>L</u> evel	INSP Cont-LC		High Frequency	<b>V</b>			
	Ser <u>v</u> ice Company	MI-INSP Cont	<b>**</b>	E <u>x</u> clude from				
	Last Inspection	3/1/2012	1	High Frequncy Check				<b>)</b>
	Next Inspection	6/1/2012	1					
	Recurring Item Link	INSP Cont		Notes			<u>^</u>	
	Cycle Amount	156.00					_	
ියි. Charg	les				1			
v	isible if Service Leve	el Arreurst						
1	is flagged to require							
li	inking to a Recurrin	g						
	invoice item					<u>S</u> ave	Ierminate C	ancel
								_
OServie	ce Level Edit						Inactive	
Servi	ce Level INSP	Cont-LC	De	scription Inspe	ection Contr	act - Large Cor	n	
Gen	eral Parts Ins	specton						
			_					
			Recu	irring is Requiri	ea			
*Th	is option is used	in Service Inspections to force	a lini	k between the	inspection	and custon	ner RMR	
					Apply	New	<u>D</u> elete	

#### Creating a New Inspection Cont.

Enter the description of the inspection and select the frequency from the dropdown.

Select the Service Problem Code from the dropdown.

When selecting the Service Level from the dropdown you will see a column indicating which Service Levels are set up to link to recurring. The recurring must be created prior to the inspection creation. If you want to link the inspection to an existing recurring, you must select a service level where the RMR Link column = "Y". Select the Service Company from the dropdown.

Select the Last Inspection Date and the Next Inspection Date.

If you have selected a Service Level which is linked to Recurring, the "Recurring Item Link" field will be available and the dropdown will display all active and future recurring invoice items associated with that Site. Choose the corresponding Recurring for that Inspection.

If you would like to request a specific technician for this inspection you may select them from the dropdown.

#### **Inspection Groups**

Inspection Groups are used to group multiple Inspections and invoice the group of inspection tickets on a single invoice for charges that are not billed through the cycle billing process. To group 2 or more inspections, assign the same group number (1 thru 9) to the individual inspections.

Select the Estimated Hours for this inspection. If this inspection becomes part of a Group Ticket, the Group Ticket will display the Total Estimated Hours for all inspections in the group as well as the estimated hours for each individual ticket

#### **High Frequency Inspections**

A new feature, High Frequency Bypass, manages Inspection Ticket creation where multiple inspections are performed at different frequencies.

For example, your customer has contracted with your company to inspect their monitored fire system. This contract requires that your company perform a quarterly visual and physical test of the fire pump monitored points, a semi-annual test of sprinklers, waterflow switches, and an annual test of all equipment including sprinklers and waterflow switches. You would set up each of these as separate inspections and the quarterly and semi annual inspections would be flagged with High Frequency Bypass checked (Yes). If all Inspections were to begin on June 1, 2012, when you generate your inspection tickets for June, the only ticket created will be the annual inspection since it is the least frequent. The quarterly and semi-annual inspection records will be advanced to the next inspection date based on the frequency. When Inspection Tickets are generated for the month of September, only the quarterly inspection ticket will be created.

Another feature "Exclude from High Frequency Check" enables you to include another inspection for the same system in an Inspection Group where the High Frequency Bypass is being used, and not have this particular inspection bypassed. Using the example above, if you added another Annual Inspection to this inspection group, and you did NOT want it to be bypassed, you would need to check the "Exclude from High Frequency Check". If an inspection is set to "High Frequency Bypass" and it is linked to a recurring; when this inspection is bypassed, the recurring linked to the inspection will also be bypassed. The next cycle date will be advanced and no invoice will be created. For example:



An Annual Inspection with a next inspection date of 1/1/2013, linked to an annual recurring with next cycle date of 1/1/2013 and a Monthly Inspection with next inspection date of 1/1/2013, linked to a monthly recurring with next cycle date of 1/1/2013; a service ticket will not be created for the monthly inspection and the next inspection date will advance to 2/1/2013. Also the monthly recurring will not be generated and the next cycle date will advance to 2/1/2013.

When using the High Frequency Bypass, and linking the inspections to recurrings, the relationship between the inspections and recurrings must be a one to one.

#### Inspection Item and Amount

These fields will be used if you bill a flat amount for an inspection. Select the appropriate Inspection Invoice Item and fill in the amount.

#### **Creating Group Inspection Ticket**

The Process for creating Group Inspection Tickets is the same as creating individual Inspection tickets. In Service Module, Select "Inspection Creation" and select desired criteria.

Click on the "Get Inspections" button and a list of Inspections which are due, based on the criteria selected, will display. Select the Inspections you would like to create tickets for and click on the "Create Tickets" button. Note that the Action Column will indicate if it is a Group Ticket. Click on the Create button.

creace mape	ction Ticket	s						_	
					ns Selected				
Action	Site	Group Num	Account	System	Inspection	Next Insp Date			
Create Gro_	Kiley Allis_	1	BS7728	Intrusi_	Annual	12/1/2012			
reate Group	Kiley Allison	1		Fire	Quarterly	12/1/2012			
	)								
							O Create	🔀 Cance	:1

A Group Ticket will be created and can be viewed by selecting the "Group Ticket" Icon in the View Tab of the Service Module. When creating the Group Ticket , the application will select the ticket with the lowest number to be the Master Ticket. Clicking on the + sign will display all tickets associated with that Group Ticket.





Double clicking on the Master Ticket will open the Group Ticket. The User can also open the Group Ticket or any of the individual tickets associated with the group by clicking on that ticket number in the dropdown. When viewing the ticket, the estimated length for that ticket will display as well as the Estimated Group Length. A new Icon "Ticket Group" will display on the open ticket. Clicking on this icon enables the User to view all tickets associated with this group as well as any other open tickets for this Site.

				Ticket #2109				×
Service Ticket	ments Billing Documents	Equipment Journal Notes and Parts Go To	Othe Item	er Purchase s Orders (0)	Service History	Ticket Log	Notifications	
Customer 10529	Kilav	Created 12/19/201	2 3:5	4:25 PM	Conta	act Allison Kiley		- 🔤
Site Kiley A	llison	Created By Administr	ator		Phone	e (734) 847-936	5 Ext	
141 R Plymo	edwood Rd uth MI48170	Status Open			Notify			
								_
<b>—</b> • • • •				0				
Sustem Account	BS7728		ר ר	Problem	Insola	at		
System Type	Intrusion	0.08			, [ 116p-11	R		
Panel Type	Visonic Powermax			Secondary Prob	em j			
	8543			Route Code				<u> </u>
Next Inspection	12/1/2012 12:00:00 AM			Expertise	5			-
Site Phone	(734) 847-9365			Priority	Mediu	im		-
Map Code	18646			Estimated Lengt	h 60	E	stimated Group Length	120
Cross Street	8543			Comments				<u> </u>
Warranty	One Year P & L							
Warranty End	Expired							<u> </u>
Memo	18646			Technician	Marlin.	Larson		-
Comments				PO #	55			
Notes	]			Category	S-Svc	: T&M		-
				Resolution				•
Service Company Service Level	MI-T&M	<b>v</b>		Use Payment None Bank (0) Credit Card (0	Information	On File		
		Inspe	ction	1				🔚 Save



#### Adding a Ticket to an Existing Group Ticket

Click on the Ticket Group Icon in a Group Service Ticket. Tickets associated with the group will display in the top portion. Any individual ticket for the same Site, not associated with the Group Ticket will display in the bottom portion. To add an individual ticket to the Group, click on the ticket and then click on the "Add" button.

#### Removing a Ticket from a Group Ticket

Click on the Ticket Group Icon in a Group Service Ticket. Tickets associated with the group will display in the top portion. Any individual ticket for the same Site, not associated with the Group Ticket will display in the bottom portion. To disassociate a ticket from the Group Ticket, click on the ticket and click on the "Remove" tab.

	a =			Ticket #2109			x
Service Ticket	Appointments and Labor	Documents Equipme (0) and Pa	ent Journal Notes rts (0) Go To	Other Purchase Items Orders (0)	Service History	Ticket Group Notific	ations
Customer	10529 Allison Kiley	C	reated 12/19/2012	2 3:54:25 PM	Contact	Allison Kiley	
Site	Kiley Allison 141 Redwood Rd Plymouth MI 48170	) S	reated By Administrat tatus Open	tor	Phone Notify	(734) 847-9365	Ext
Other Ticke	ts in Group:						
Ticket	Date	ST	System	System T	уре	Problem	Resolution
2110	12/19/2012	OP		Fire Sys	tem	Insp-Fire	N/A
Add Site Tickets	A Remov	e V Dispatch	Resolve		All tickets mus	t be resolved to invoid	ce or close Invoice/Close
Add Site Tickets Ticket	A Remove	e V Dispatch	Resolve	Sustem 1	All tickets mus	t be resolved to invoid	e or close Invoice/Close
Add Site Tickets Ticket 2111	A Remove not in Group: Date 12/20/2012	e V Dispatch ST OP	Resolve System BS7728	System 1 Instrusi	All tickets mus ype on System	t be resolved to invoid Problem Can't Set B/A	e or close Invoice/Close Resolution N/A



#### Creating an Appointment in a Group Ticket

Open a Group Ticket and click on "Ticket Group" Icon. Click on "Dispatch"

	<mark>∂</mark> ∓			Ti	cket #2106				×
Service Ticket	Appointments I and Labor	Silling Documents	Equipment and Parts Go To	Notes (0) Items	Purchase Orders (0)	Service History	t Ticket Group	Notifications	
Customer Site	26165 Jones, Eddy Eddy Jones 7025 N Lilley F Unit #135 Canton MI 481	load 88	Created 10/ Created By Adr Status Opr	16/2012 10:58 ninistrator en	:53 AM	Contact Phone Notify		Ext	
Uther Tickel Ticket	ts in Group: Date	ST	System		System T	ype	Problem	Resolution	
2107	10/16/2012	OP	68420	07	Instrusio	on System	Insp-Int	N/A	
Add Site Tickets	/\Re not in Group:	move V	Dispatch	esolve		All tickets mu	st be resolved t	p invoice or closeInvoic	e/Close
Ticket	Date	ST	System		System T	уре	Problem	Resolution	
S Dispatcl									
Appointm	nent(s)								
Name	Schedu	iled Dispa	Appointm	ents for Group	Departed	Est Len	Res Code	Note	
Add.	Delete	]							
Scheu Technici Estimated Dispato Arrived	duled an d Length 0 tch Times led 1 hed 1	× ×	Appointment Resolution Notes	Resolution			<b>Y</b>	Needs Go Back	
Departe	ed 📔	×	🗐 🥜 Open Ticke	it			📄 Save	🔀 Close	



From the Dispatch screen you can view already scheduled appointments or create new appointments by clicking on the "Add" button. Clicking on the "Add" button will open the Appointment Summary Board where you can select the day, time and technician. When creating the appointment, the Estimated Length will automatically default to the total Estimated Length from all of the tickets associated in that group. Note: Once you schedule an appt. for a Group Ticket, you cannot drag and drop the appt. to another tech or time. If you need to change the tech, you must delete the appointment from the Group Ticket Dispatch Screen and create a new appointment. To change just the time, you can do so from the Group Ticket Dispatch Screen.

			Appointments for Group				
Name	Scheduled	Dispatched	Arrived	Departed	Est Len	Res Code	Note
Orlando Smith	12/27/2012 9:00 A_	12/27/2012 8:55 A_	12/27/2012 9:15 A_	12/27/2012 12:00_	120	Insp Comp.	
4							
	Delete						
			interact Discut Alam				
📆 Scheduled —			pointment Resolution				
Scheduled	Orlando Smith	Resolu	ition Insp Comp.			Veed	s Go Bac
Scheduled Technician Estimated Length	Orlando Smith 120	Resolu Notes	Insp Comp.			Need	s Go Bac
Scheduled Technician Estimated Length	Orlando Smith 120	Resolu	Insp Comp.			Veed	s Go Bac
Scheduled Technician Estimated Length Dispatch Times Scheduled 12	Orlando Smith 120 27/2012 <b>v</b> 09:00 /	Notes	tion Insp Comp.			▼ Need	s Go Bac
Scheduled Technician Estimated Length Dispatch Times Scheduled 12	0rlando Smith 120 27/2012  09:00 A	M V	ation Insp Comp.		_	▼ Need	s Go Bac
Scheduled Technician Estimated Length Dispatch Times Scheduled 12 Dispatched 12	0rlando Smith 120 27/2012 ▼ 09:00 / 27/2012 ▼ 08:55 /	M I	tion Insp Comp.			Need	s Go Bac
Scheduled Technician Estimated Length Dispatch Times Scheduled 12. Dispatched 12. Arrived 12.	0rlando Smith 120 27/2012 ▼ 09:00 / 27/2012 ▼ 08:55 / 27/2012 ▼ 09:15 /	Apr Resolu Notes	tion Insp Comp.			Need	s Go Bac

Group Tickets on the Appointment Summary Board will display as "GRP" and the master group ticket number. Double clicking on the appointment will open the Dispatch screen and enable you to enter Dispatched, Arrived and Departed times as well as resolve the appt. Clicking on the Open Ticket Button enables you to open the ticket from this screen.

## SedonaService Group Tickets

🕒 Group	Ticket											
View												
< De	ecember 2012	2	January 201	3 🔸	Display Grou	p All				Zoor	າ 🔘 🍯	•
25 26	27 28 29 30	<u>s</u> )1	<u>м і w і</u> 1 2	345	Select	Code		Name	Ī	Service Co		-
23	4 5 6 7	86	7 8 9 1	0 11 12	<b>V</b>	Mac	k.Miller	Mack Mi	iller	MI-INSP Co	nt	
9 10	11 12 13 14	15 13 22 20	14 15 16 1	7 18 19	V	Mark	Taylor	Mark Tay	lor	MI-T&M		
23 24	25 26 27 28	3 29 27	28 29 30 3	31 1 2		Marlin	n.Larson	Marlin La	rson	MI-T&M		
30 31		3	456	789		Mars	hall.Watson	Marshall V	Watson	MI-L&M		-
Sched	ule Boar	ď										
	27					Thursday						
	[Unassign	Mack Mille	Mark Taylo	Marlin Lars	Marshall	Mike McKe	Mike Walk	Orlando S	Orson Goo	Oscar Mart	Osman W	il
	-											
8_am												
<b>Q</b> 00			GRP		GRP		1					-
			2123 - Insp		2123 - Insp		Clicking on	the Add E	Button wil	l bring		
			-		-		vou to th	ne Appt Sc	hedule Bo	ard.		
			s		s Acces		, Double clic	k on desire	ed tech an	id time		
10.00			(Medi		(Medi	_	to sched	ule appt. (	Once you	have	<u> </u>	-
10_00	-		Diane		Diane		scheduled	a group tio	cket, you d	annot		
						— c	Irag and dr	op appt to	another	tech or		
								time				_
11 00			GRP 2125		9:00a	am-11:00am						
			- Insp		GRP 2 Acces	2123 - Insp- is (Medium)						
			Acces		(Dian	e Tanner -						
			S (Medi		42 Ga Stree	t, Canton)						
12 pm			um)									
12			Lyndse									-
												-
T										I I		

You can also create appointments for the individual tickets. Simply open up the individual ticket and create the appointment in the Appointments and Labor Tab as you would for any other individual ticket not associated with a group.



#### Adding Parts to Group Tickets

Parts must be added to the individual ticket to insure that the equipment list is modified on each system when the ticket is closed. To open an individual ticket from the Group Ticket, click on Ticket Group. From here you can double click on any individual ticket to open it.



#### Resolving a Group Ticket

To resolve a group ticket, click on the Resolve Button on the Ticket Group screen. After choosing a resolution code and entering resolution notes, click on the Resolve Button. This will resolve all tickets associated with the group.

0 1-						
3	₽ =		Ti	cket #2127		×
	Ticket					
B	12 C				3	
			🚇 🛃 🚾 🔍			
Ticket	and Labor	ng Documents Equ (0) and	Parts Journal Notes Other	Orders (0) History Lo	g Group	
L			Go To		Notil	ications
Customer	11351 Johns Lydia		Created 12/27/2012 2:30:3	36 PM Contact	1	<b>~</b>
Site	Lydia Johns		Created By Administrator	Phone		Ext
	<ul> <li>1407 Flanders Ri Chagrin Falls OH</li> </ul>	d 44022	Status Open	Notify		
	-					
Other Ticke	ets in Group:	CT.	Custom	Custom Turne	Durblass	Developing
2128	12/27/2012	OP	System	Fire System	Insp-Fire	N/A
					1	
	1	1				
Add Cite Tieluste	Remo	ove V Dispa	itch Resolve	All tickets n	nust be resolved to invo	ice or close Invoice/Close
Ticket	Date	ST	Sustem	Sustem Tune	Problem	Besolution
TIOKOV	000	191 191	oyatam	oyotom type	1 robiem	recolution
						4
🔕 Reso	lve				×	
_ 🖂 Ті	ickets Besolution					
nes	solution			write existing Resolutio	n on tickets	
Not	tes					
	L					
- A Er	rors					
					-	
				Besolve	\chi Cancel	
					Cancer	



#### Invoicing a Group Ticket Not Linked to RMR

After resolving a Group Ticket, you can invoice the ticket by clicking on the Invoice/Close Button on the Ticket Group screen. The Preview Invoice button allows you to preview the invoice prior to saving. From the Invoice Preview screen you can invoice and close the ticket from the Invoice & Close button. If there are no billable charges you will receive a message indicating that there are no billable charges and a Close Ticket button is available.

😫 Invoice Group T	ickets		×
- El Invoice	Third Party Bill To		
Bill To Contact Invoice Date	Baxter, Kendal          I         1/ 4/2013         I         Add Resolution Note to Invoice		
Errors			<u> </u>
		Preview Invoice	▼ Cancel



🜀 Group Ticket #2135 - Invoice Preview				- 🗆 ×
		Invoid	e & Close C	ancel
. 3 3 2 2   14 4 1 of 1 ▶ ▶   .	ಖ 🦪 🛃 - 🛛 100%	-		
SedonaSecurity		Preview		-
Chagrin Falls, OH 48022	Customer		Kendal Baxter	
(480) 247-5602	Customer Number		13000	_
	Invoice Number		Pending	1
	Invoice Date		1/4/2013	3
				-
CALCULA	TED CHARGES			
Description			Amount	t
Ticket# 2135, Monthly Intrusion Inspection R10140	) – Instrusion System			
1.00 Inspection Labor		150.00	150.00	)
Ticket# 2136, Monthly Fire Inspection 555123 - In-	strusion System			
1.00 Inspection Labor		250.00	250.00	)
		Subtotal:	400.00	)
		Tax:	31.00	I
				-
	I	Charges Due:	\$431.00	I



Marco Island, Florida



#### Invoicing a Group Ticket Linked to RMR

Resolve and Invoice/Close the Group Inspection Ticket as previously described. In Main Tree, expand the Accounts Receivable Module and click on Cycle Invoicing. Click on New.

S Cycle In	voicing					×
Cycle	Description	Creation Date	Month	Posted	Bill Thru Day	
I Show Po	osted Cycles					
<u>A</u> pply C	redit			ew	Edit	⊆lose



Choose the desired Month and Branches and the option for Only Inspection Linked RMR. Choosing this option will create a cycle invoice for all recurrings tied to a closed inspection ticket that have not already been cycled. Click Save. A pop up screen asking if you are ready to begin selected cycle invoicing will display. Click Yes.

🕒 New (	Eycle Inv	oicing						×
	vcle Bill —							
· · · ·		Month	01-Dec-12		า			
		— I <u>n</u> voice Group #			-			
		<u>D</u> escription	01-Dec-12					
		 Include						
		Customers with Bill Day	28 💌 or	Less				
			Only Inspe	ction Linked R	MR			
			C Only Non-1	перессоптенк	вакмк			
Include	e Bran	ich	Descr	iption		Last Cycle	Posted	
	MI		Michig	jan		1/1/1900	Y	
	OH		Unio			1/1/1900	Y	
1								- 11
						Γ	All Branche	s
						<u>S</u> ave		
Cycle_Inv	voice			×				
_								
	Are you r	eady to begin selecte	d Cycle Invoicina	7				
		,	,	·				
		<u>Y</u> e	s <u>N</u> o					



After recurring cycle has been created, highlight the cycle batch and right click. Select Print and Cycle Detail to review the cycle invoices prior to posting.

Ele Help										
🗈 🍐 Đint & Close 🕩 👫 🗉 🖽 🔍 🔍 100 % 💌 🔿	ə 1/1 🛛 🖓	Back 🕥 Forward   PDF	Excel BTF Lext HTML Ch	ose						
			1 3 1 4		8		1 9	- 1 1 <b>D</b>		
1										
1										
	Cycle	Invoicing Deta	il		Se	edonaSecu	irity San	dbox		
1										
•	Customer #	Name	Item	Cycle	Period	Amount	Tax	Total		
	19407	Lyndsey Jones	INSP Cont	м	12/1/2012 - 12/31/2012	20.00	0.00	20.00		
	277.45	Texes Datases Calific	MI-Wayne County	RI	0.50%	0.00	0.10	0.10		
	27745	Delores Smith	MUN M.Stata Salas Tay	M RM	8/8/2012 - 12/31/2012	/2.00	4.32	432		
			MI-Wayne County	RM	0.50%	0.00	0.36	0.36		
						92.00	4.78	96.78		
2						92.00	4.78	96.78		
1										
4										
1										
:										
•										
:										
6										
1										
•										
2										
	December	27 2012 2 47 10 DM						Page 1		
	Decembers	1,2012 3.41.101 M						i uge i		
<b>1</b>									_	
<u>.</u>										<u>)</u>

Posting process is the same as with all cycle invoicing.



#### Grouping Service Tickets

To combine Individual Service Tickets assigned to systems in the same site to a Group, open one of the service tickets and click on the Ticket Group Icon. All tickets associated with that Site which are not part of that Group will appear in the lower portion under "Site Tickets not in Group".

( ) E	3 ₹					Ticket #2129	9				x
Т	icket										
Service Ticket	Appointments and Labor	\$ Billing	Documents (0)	Equipment Jo and Parts Go T	ournal Notes	Other Items Orders (0)	Service History	Ticket Log	Notific	ations	
Customer	12265 Hoover Ken	zie		Created	12/28/20	12 10:44:37 AM	Cor	ntact		~	
Site	Kenzie Hoov	er		Created B	By Administr	rator	Pho	one 🗍		Ext	
	<ul> <li>11 Fawn Bro Novi MI 4833</li> </ul>	ok 75		Status	Open		No	tify			
Other Ticket	ts in Group:		ST		Sustan	Susters	Tupo	Problem		Resolution	
	Date		01		System	System	rype	FIODIEI	n	nesolution	
Пскет											
Ticket	-		1								
LICKET	1										
Ticket											
licket											
Add .	× []	Remove <sup>v</sup>		Dispatch	Resolve.		All tick	kets must be res	olved to invoic	e or close Invoice/C	lose
Add . Site Tickets	A not in Group:	Remove <sup>r</sup>	d [	Dispatch	Resolve.		All tick	tets must be res	olved to invoic	e or close Invoice/C	lose
Add . Site Tickets Ticket	∧ not in Group: Date	Remove <sup>v</sup>	./	Dispatch	Resolve.		All tick Type	kets must be res	olved to invoic	e or close Invoice/C	lose
Add. Site Tickets Ticket 2120	A not in Group: Date 12/26/2012	Remove <sup>v</sup>	ST RS	Dispatch	Resolve. System A60919	 System Instrus	All tick Type sion System	Problem	olved to invoic n quipment	e or close Invoice/C Resolution 3 Repair	lose
Add. Site Tickets Ticket 2120 2130	A not in Group: Date 12/26/2012 12/28/2012	Remove <sup>1</sup>	ST RS RS	Dispatch	Resolve. System A60919 A60919	 System Instrusio Instrusio	All tick Type tion System on System	Problem Add Er Code D	n <b>n quipment</b> hanges	e or close Invoice/C Resolution 3 Repair 3 Repair	lose
Add . Site Tickets Ticket 2120 2130	A not in Group: Date 12/26/2012	Bemove S	ST RS RS	Dispatch	Resolve. System <b>A60919</b> A60919	System Instrusio	All tick Type sion System on System	Problet Add Ev Code C	n <b>n quipment</b> hanges	e or close Invoice/C Resolution 3 Repair 3 Repair	lose
Add . Site Tickets Ticket 2120 2130	A not in Group: Date 12/26/2012 12/28/2012	Remove S	ST RS RS	Dispatch	Resolve. System A60919 A60313	 System Instrusio	All tick Type sion System on System	Problet Add E Code C	n n <b>quipment</b> ihanges	e or close Invoice/C Resolution 3 Repair 3 Repair	lose
Add . Site Tickets Ticket 2120 2130	A not in Group: Date 12/26/2012	Bemove '	ST RS RS	Dispatch	Resolve. System <b>A60919</b> A60919	 System Instrusio	All tick Type tion System	Problem Problem Add E Code C	n <b>n quipment</b> ihanges	e or close Invoice/C Resolution 3 Repair 3 Repair	lose
Add. Site Tickets Ticket 2120 2130	∧	Remove '	ST RS RS	Dispatch	Resolve. System A60919 A60919	 System Instrusio	All tick Type ion System on System	Problem Problem Add E Code C	n <b>n quipment</b> ihanges	e or close Invoice/C Resolution <b>3 Repair</b> 3 Repair	lose
Add. Site Tickets Ticket 2120 2130	∧ not in Group: Date 12/26/2012 12/28/2012	Remove '	ST RS RS	Dispatch	Resolve. System A60919 A60919	 System Instrusion	All tick Type tion System on System	Problet Add Er Code C	n <b>n quipment</b> ihanges	e or close Invoice/C Resolution <b>3 Repair</b> 3 Repair	lose
Add. Site Tickets Ticket 2120 2130	A Inot in Group: Date 12/26/2012 12/28/2012	Remove S	ST RS RS	Dispatch	Resolve. System A60919 A60919	 System Instrusion Instrusion	All tick Type tion System	Problet Add Er Code C	olved to invoic n <b>quipment</b> hanges	e or close Invoice/C Resolution 3 Repair 3 Repair	lose
Add . Site Tickets Ticket 2120 2130	A Inot in Group: Date 12/26/2012 12/28/2012	Remove S	ST RS RS	Dispatch	Resolve. System A60919 A60919	 System Instrusio	All tick Type tion System	Problet Add Er Code C	n <b>quipment</b> hanges	e or close Invoice/C Resolution <b>3 Repair</b> 3 Repair	lose
Add , Site Tickets Ticket 2120 2130	∧   not in Group: Date 12/26/2012 12/28/2012	Semove <sup>s</sup>	ST RS RS	Dispatch	Resolve. System A60919 A60919	 System Instrusio	All tick Type tion System	Probler Add Er Code C	n <b>quipment</b> hanges	e or close Invoice/C Resolution <b>3 Repair</b> 3 Repair	lose
Add , Site Tickets Ticket 2120 2130	∧   not in Group: Date 12/26/2012 12/28/2012	Semove <sup>s</sup>	ST RS RS	Dispatch	Resolve. System A60919 A60919	 System Instrusio	All tick Type tion System	Problet Add Ex Code D	olved to invoic n quipment hanges	e or close Invoice/C Resolution 3 Repair 3 Repair	lose



Click on the line for the ticket you would like to add to the Group and Click on the Add button. The ticket will be added to the Group.

	≩ ∓ icket		Tic	ket #2129		x
Service Ticket	Appointments and Labor	Documents E	Quipment and Parts Go To	Purchase Service Tick Orders (0) History Lo	et Group Notifica	tions
Customer Site	12265 Hoover, Kenzie Kenzie Hoover 11 Fawn Brook Novi MI 48375		Created 12/28/2012 10:44: Created By Administrator Status Open	37 AM Contact Phone Notify		Ext
Ticket 2120	Date 12/26/2012	ST RS	System A60919	System Type Instrusion System	Problem Add Equipment	Resolution 3 Repair
Add	∧   Bemove	×√   Di	ispatch   Resolve	All tickets m	ust be resolved to invoice	or close Invoice/Close
Site Tickets Ticket 2130	not in Group: Date 12/28/2012	ST RS	System A60919	System Type Instrusion System	Problem Code Changes	Resolution 3Repair



Notes
